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CESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Cabin John Agueduct, located one-half mile west of Glen
Echo, Maryland, and four-tenths of a mile north of the Poto-
mac River, carries MacArthur Boulevard traffic on the bridge
(E/W) over Cabin John Creek (N/S) and over the-Cabin John
Parkway (N/S). The Cabin John Agueduct conduit is located
within the bridge structure under the boulevard.

Cabin John Agueduct is comprised of one principal arch
segment of 110 degrees which has a span of 220 feet and a
height at the center of 57 feet three inches. Five additional
arches and four spandrel spans form the remainder of the
structure, but they are concealed from view in the appended
photograph. The weight of the principal arch rests on its
own pilings.

The facing stone of the Aqueduct is Senecca (Maryland)
sandstone except for Quincy {(Massachusetts) granite in the
arch ring and Port Deposit (Maryland) granite in the skew-
backs. The backing stone, dug from a nearby quarry, is
"hiue" or "Potomac" gneiss. The lead and brick lined conduit,
with an average fall of nine inches per mile, acts as an
arch, providing support for the bridge. A steel door in
ecach abutment provides access to the interior of the bridge.

The deck of the Cabin John Agueduct, originally of sand-
stone, was turned into an asphalt roadbed in 1873. The
roadway is 17 feet two inches wide over the main arch and
19 feet two inches wide over the abutments and approach spans.

The flat surface of the agueduct is relieved by two pro-
jecting courses at the parapet.

Cabin John Aqueduct is on its original site.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

The 220 foot span single arch was, from 1863-1903, the
unchallenged longest stone masonry arch in the world. De-
signed by Montgomery Cunningham Meigs (1816-1892) of the
United States Army Corps of Engineering, it was an innova-
tional feat of nineteenth-century engineering. The ingenious
features of the agueduct include the method of the control of
water flow and water distribution as designed by Meigs. The
use of the water main itself as a supporting member of the
arch is an innovation.

- The strength and durability of the arch is further
attested to by the fact that it remains in continuous use
(1971) to carry E/W traffic on MacArthur Boulevard over
Cabin John Creek. The aqueduct inside the bridge providead
the principal source of water to Washington, D. C., through-
out the late nineteenth century. At peak capacity the con-
duit transported forty million gallons of water per day to
the District of Columbia. By 1968 the agueduct supplied the
city with twenty percent of its water.

HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE s

The United States Congress, fearing a water famine in
1852 in Washington, D. C., ordered the construction of an
agueduct. President Millard Fillmore wrote the War Department
on September 13, 1852, initiating the construction of an
agqueduct.

. On November 3, 1852, the Waf-Department gave Lieutenant

Meigs, Army Corps of Engineers, the responsibility for the
construction of the aqueduct.

Georgia-born Meigs, who graduated fifth in the Class of
1836 from the United States Military Academy, West Point,
was a major architect-endineer in the Washington, D. C. area
as well as an outstanding soldier. His first, and favorite,
design commission was the Cabin John Agueduct, known then

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET
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Cabin John Adgueduct

$#8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

as the "Union Arch," the mid-nineteenth-century acqueduct which
supplied Washington, D. C. with water. The innovational fea-
tures of the agueduct, as well as those of the other three
bridges in the aqueduct system, in particular the elliptical
Bridge Number Three, set this project as a major landmark in
the history of American engineering as well as in Meigs'
career. Meigs' other engineering accomplishments -include his
design and supervision of the construction of the wings and
dome on the United States Capitol (1853-1859); supervision

of the extension of the General Post Office in the District

of Columbia (1855-1859); plans for the War Department Building
of 1867; supervision of the National Museum (1876); and the ex-
tension of the Washington agueduct (1876). Meigs, in 1882,
after retiring from the army, was the architect for the Pension
Building in Washington, D. C., a National Register of Historic
e e Places property.

As ' a soldier, Meigs served the United States in the Civil
: War. In early April 1861, he was sent on a secret mission,
< for President Abraham Lincoln, to Fort Dickens in Florida.
o The following month he was promoted to Brigadier General and
became Quartermaster General. While serving in General U. S.
Grant's army at the battles of Fredericksburg and Belle Plain,
both in Virginia, in 1864 and under General William Tecumseh
Sherman in Savannah, Georgia, in January of 1865, his outstand-
ing service won him the praise of James G. Blaine and Secretary
of State William H. Seward, as well as a promotion to Major
General.

Meigs died in 1892 and was buried with high honors at the
National Cemetery, Arlington, Virginia.

In 1853 before Meigs began construction of the adgueduct
§ for Washington, D. C., he wrote an extensive outline of his
N design plans including a projection of the growth of the ‘
- population of Washington and a discussion of a method for fil-
‘tering water at a time when that subject was virtually unknown.

Construction of the Cabin John Agueduct began in 1853
under the direction of Meigs. Alfred L. Rives, educated at
the University of Parish, was the resident engineer.

i
,.ﬁ' In order to speed efficient construction of the aqueduct
and bridge, an additional lock was installed in the Chesapeake

(1 of 3 continuation sheets)
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and Ohio Canal 1,000 feet to the south, which dammed up Cabin
John Creek allow1ng mule-drawn barges to float all necessary
supplles to the site. Construction proceeded sw1ft1y, by 1857
the main arch ring was completed. Progress slowed down after
1859 owing to a lack of funds; it was not until December 3, 1863
that the arch was completed. The agueduct was put in operation
on July 29, 1864.

The technical advances embodied by the design of the arch
were immediately recognized in Europe in an English book (1867)
on waterworks by Zerah Colburn and William H. Maw, and in
Annals des Points et Chaussies, published in France in the
1860's. The significance of the agqueduct, however, failed to
reach the American public until a later date. :

_ During the Civil War the United States Army kept a constant
e guard over the agueduct in order to protect the Capital's
i principal source of water.

Lbcal residents used the agueduct as a bridge over Cabin
John Creek. The traffic necessitated the construction of an
asphalt road bed in 1873 in addition to parapets as guard
rails.

‘The anomosity during the Civil War affected the bridge
when Jefferson Davis' name was effaced from a plague on the
arch. Davis was Secretary of War in 1853 when construction
began. In 1862 the Secretary of the Department of the Interior
ordered Robert McIntyre, a contractor, to remove Davis' name
under the cover of darkness.. The name of the Confederate ‘
President was restored in 1909 by order of President Theodore
Roosevelt.

One of the unique features of the Cabin John Agueduct, the
steel doors in each abutment giving access to the interior of
the arch for maintenance, also served another function.
According to local history the interior of the bridge was used
to hide fugitive slaves fleeing to Canada on the Unaerground
Railroad.

‘The Union Arch, so called at'the time of its construction,

e became known as Cabin John Bridge--named for Captain John, a
T hermit, who lived in a cabin near the bridge site. In 1962
Qﬁv wvhen a highway bridge over the Potomac at Cabin John Creek was

(2 of 3 continuation sheets).
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called Cabin John Bridge, the older acueduct bridge was
named "0ld Cabin John Bridge."
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